
MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 
 

SACRE MEETING 
 
 

3.30 PM TUESDAY, 5TH FEBRUARY, 2013 
 

AFON TAF HIGH SCHOOL 
 
 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. Tour of the House of Religions, Afon Taf High   

2. Apologies for absence   

3. Minutes of last Meeting  - 9th October 2012  (Pages 1 - 4) 

4. Matters Arising   

5. The review of the Agreed Syllabus for Merthyr 
Tydfil  

(Pages 5 - 8) 

6. Religious Studies Examination Results 2012   

 To be tabled at the meeting.   
 

 

7. Teacher Assessment Levels in Religious 
Education 2012  

 

 To be tabled at the meeting.   



 

8. SACRE Monitoring:   

 • Inspection findings in Religious Education:  
Summer 2012 – Autumn 2012 (to be tabled 
at the meeting). 

 

• School Self Evaluation Template.   
 

 

9. SACRE Inspection findings in Religious Education:  
Summer 2012 - Autumn 2012  

 

 To be tabled at the meeting.   
 

 

10. Inset Courses 2012 - 13:  Oral Report   

11. WASACRE   

 • Feedback from meeting in Merthyr Tydfil on 
23rd November 2012. 

 

• Representation at next meeting. 
 

• Executive voting.   
 

(Pages 9 - 12) 

12. SACRE Membership  -  Update.   

13. Dates of future meetings.   

14. Correspondence   

15. Any other business as deemed urgent by the 
Chairman  

 

 
 
 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors E Galsworthy (Chair)  
 Julie Symes (Vice-Chair) 

 
 Councillors:  T Chaplin, G Davies, K Moran  

 
Sue Blackmore, Janine Brill, Lorraine Buck, 
Lucy Draper, Debra Evans, Father Matthew Gibbon, 
Lynne Lambe, Jonathan Martin, Gareth Parry, 
Carys Pritchard and Ann Star 

  
together with appropriate officers 

  
 



If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203 

 
Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF MEETING

SACRE MEETING

TUESDAY, 9TH OCTOBER, 2012 

PRESENT: 

Councillors:  T Chaplin, G Davies, E Galsworthy, K Moran, 
Lorraine Buck, Lucy Draper, Jonathan Martin, Carys Pritchard, 
Ann Star and Julie Symes

Karen Vokes  

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

419 Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Janine Brill.   

420 Election of Chair 
Person 

Nominations for the Chair were sought from the Committee. 

RESOLVED that:

Councillor Ernie Galsworthy be appointed as Chair. 

Councillor Galsworthy then took the Chair.     

421 Election of Vice Chair 
Person 

Nominations were sought for Vice Chair from the 
Committee. 

RESOLVED that: 

Julie Symes be re-elected as Vice Chair.   

422 Minutes of Previous 
Meetings 

The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 21
st
 February 

2012 were submitted and approved.   

423 Matters Arising Carys Pritchard referred to Minute Number 778 with regard 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



   

to Alun Jones attending future SACRE meetings.  She 
advised that Mr Jones has now left his post and Lucy 
Draper, teacher in charge of RE, at Penydre School will 
now be attending future SACRE meetings.  

Karen Vokes circulated notes of the 12
th
 June 2012 meeting 

which was not quorate.   

424 Roles and 
Responsibilities of 
SACRE 

Carys Pritchard circulated a presentation on the roles and 
responsibilities of a SACRE, and discussed the following in 
detail: 

• The Composition of SACRE  

• The responsibilities of the Local Authority in respect 
of SACRE.  

• The relationship between SACRE and the Local 
Authority about RE and Collective Worship 

• Review of the agreed syllabus for RE 

• Determination requests to be exempt from “broadly 
Christian Worship” 

• Consideration of complaints about the provision 
and delivery of religious education and collective 
worship. 

• Publication of Annual Reports.   

425 SACRE Membership  -  
update and Humanist 
request 

Carys Pritchard referred to the request made in September 
2011 from the British Humanist Association for a Humanist 
representative to be appointed to Merthyr SACRE.  It was 
explained that guidance has been sought from WASACRE 
and Welsh Government on this issue.  Both Welsh 
Government and WASACRE have advised that a 
representative of a Humanist organisation cannot be part of 
the religious representatives on SACRE but can however 
be admitted as co-opted if members are in agreement.   

Question were raised by the Committee. 

RESOLVED that 

SACRE would reply to the British Humanist Association 
noting that they would be willing to consider a request for 
co-option from a member of a Local Humanist group. 

Further consideration will be given to this matter if a request 
is received.  

Karen Vokes to send letters to religious denominations, 
Unions and Schools in relation to available vacancies within 
SACRE.   

426 SACRE Annual Report 
2011-12 

Carys Pritchard outlined the activities of the Merthyr Tydfil 
SACRE during the academic year 2011/12 as detailed in 
the Annual Report.   

RESOLVED that:

The Annual Report be agreed.  

Page 2



   

427 SACRE development 
plans: 

Carys Pritchard led Committee in detail through the aims 
within the SACRE development plan.   

RESOLVED that: 

Committee notes the contents of the SACRE development 
plan.   

428 SACRE monitoring: Inspection Issues: Update on School     

Carys Pritchard referred to the inspection carried out at 
Edwardsville Primary School.  

RESOLVED that any progress would be brought back to a 
future meeting.  

School Self Evaluation Template

RESOLVED that  

Discussions to take place separately with Lorraine Buck on 
how to move this forward. 

This item be discussed at the next meeting. 
    
Estyn thematic review   

RESOLVED that 

This item be discussed at the next meeting.   

429 KS3 Securing Teacher 
Assessment 
Moderation Process: 

A brief overview was given with regard to the KS3 Securing 
Teacher Assessment Outcomes and Chief Moderator’s 
Report.   

These were noted and concerns were expressed by the 
Committee on how schools can be supported to move 
forward following these assessments.   

RESOLVED that 

This item be agendered for a future meeting. 

The Committee look at examples of good practice from 
other schools.   

430 WASACRE AGM Meeting on the 26
th
 June 2012   

Carys Pritchard led the Committee through the main 
discussion of the AGM at Llandudno Junction on the 26

th

June 2012. 

SACRE’s and the Local Community Report  

The contents of the SACRE’s and the Local Community 
Report were noted by the Committee.     

In relation to 4.2 of the report (Christian denominations and 

Page 3



   

other religions), it was agreed that the Committee would 
seek guidance from Father Matthew especially in relation to 
developing further links with faith groups.   

Representation at the 23
rd

 November 2012 Meeting at 
Merthyr Tydfil

Carys Pritchard advised that all members are invited to the 
WASACRE meeting of the 23

rd
 November at Merthyr. 

431 Holocaust Memorial 
Day 2013 

Carys Pritchard referred to the Holocaust Memorial Day for 
2013 and advised that the theme will be ‘Communities 
Together:  Build a Bridge’. 

Agreed that Karen Vokes send out letters to all schools in 
the County Borough advising them of the Holocaust 
Memorial Day and the website for free educational 
resources.   

432 Dates of future 
meetings 

The date of the next meeting is Tuesday, 5
th
 February 2013 

at 3.30 pm at Afon Taf High School.  

A further meeting has been confirmed for Tuesday, 11
th

June 2013 venue to be confirmed at the February meeting 

433 Correspondence There was no correspondence.   

434 Any other business as 
deemed urgent by the 
Chairman 

No other business was discussed.   

Page 4



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
REPORT TO:  STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION 
 
DATE:   February 5th 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  The Review of the Agreed Syllabus for Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 
Background 
 
During the Spring Term 2008 Merthyr Tydfil Standing Conference endorsed and 
adopted a new agreed syllabus for the Authority’s schools to be implemented from 
September 2008. The agreed syllabus provides information to the LA and schools 
about: 
 

• religious education in the Foundation Phase;  

• programmes of study for religious education in key stages 2, 3, 4 and Post 

16; and  

• assessment information through the use of outcomes and level descriptors for 

religious education.  

A yearly programme of INSET has been provided for schools and specific training on 
the agreed syllabus has been offered. Comprehensive support materials, including 
Schemes of Work and electronic Progress in Learning files for primary and 
secondary schools, have already been issued to schools.  Schools have also 
accessed a number of Welsh Government guidance documents:  

 

• Religious education: Guidance for 14 – 19-year- olds 

• Religious Education: guidance for Key Stage 2 and 3 

• Exemplifying learner profiles at Key stages 2 and 3 in religious education 

A guidance document on RE in the Foundation Phase is soon to be published.  
 
It is a legal requirement for every LA to review its agreed syllabus within five years of 
the last review. Merthyr Tydfil SACRE is aware of this requirements and it is a key 
element of the SACRE development plan for 2012 onwards.  
 
Curriculum Review 
 
On October 1st 2012 Leighton Andrews AM, Minister for Education and Skills, 
announced a review of assessment and the National Curriculum in Wales. This 
review includes two phases. The first phase involves the introduction of the National 
Literacy and Numeracy Framework by September 2013. The second phase involves 
identification of revisions to the current assessment and curriculum arrangements in 
Wales.  This review will cover the National Curriculum core and foundation subjects 
at each key stage.  Implementation is expected to take place from September 2014. 
 
There is also a three year independent evaluation of the Foundation Phase currently 
being conducted. The evaluation will consider: 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



• how the foundation phase is being implemented; 

• suggest ways in which improvements can be made; 

• what impact the Foundation Phase is having; 

• value for money; and 

• tracking the future impact of the Foundation Phase.  

 

Recommendation  
 
Members of the SACRE are requested to discuss the content of this report and 
written statement by Welsh Government and consider the implications for Merthyr 
Tydfil agreed syllabus.  

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

• Written statement by the Welsh Government on the review of assessment 

and the National Curriculum in Wales. 

 

 

 
 

  
 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

WRITTEN STATEMENT  

BY 

THE WELSH GOVERNMENT 
 

 

TITLE  Review of assessment and the National Curriculum in Wales  

DATE  1 October 2012 

BY  Leighton Andrews AM, Minister for Education and Skills 

 
 
My key priority is to raise the standard of education and improve outcomes for young 
people in Wales.  As part of this we are reforming the system in order to improve 
levels of literacy and numeracy, and to reduce the impact of deprivation on these.   
 
In order to embed literacy and numeracy across all subjects in the curriculum and to 
support all teachers to become teachers of literacy and numeracy we are introducing 
the National Literacy and Numeracy Framework (LNF).  The LNF will be a statutory 
curriculum requirement for pupils from Reception to Year 9, from September 2013, 
and teachers will be required to undertake annual assessments of pupils’ progress in 
meeting the expectations set out within the LNF and report these to parents.  
Alongside the LNF we are introducing reading and numeracy tests for pupils in Year 
2 to Year 9, which will provide further evidence of pupils’ level of attainment in 
addition to the teacher assessments that will be undertaken. 
 
Taken together these two reforms represent a significant change to the assessment 
arrangements in schools in Wales.  I have therefore asked my officials to consider 
the wider assessment arrangements which operate in schools and to make 
recommendations to me on any changes needed to ensure that the LNF and the 
tests form part of a coherent approach.  The review will respond to concerns about 
the reliability of teacher assessment highlighted by Estyn, consider whether 
standards/levels of attainment contained within our curriculum are sufficiently 
stretching and explore the impact of changing assessment on the wider curriculum.  I 
have asked officials to consider, in particular, the use and usefulness of the current 
approach to level descriptors and attainment targets, the most appropriate modes of 
assessment, how assessment data is used and reported, and the timing of the 
assessments that are undertaken and which subjects it is necessary to assess.  My 
aims in undertaking this review are to streamline and simplify assessment 
arrangements and ensure that assessment supports improvements in teaching and 
learning. 
 

Page 7



The LNF very deliberately raises the bar in terms of our expectations of what children 
should know and be able to do.  I think it is right that we seek to ensure that the 
standards set for our children are stretching and in keeping with international best 
practice.  As a result, alongside the review of assessment, I have also asked officials 
to consider whether the expectations for what children should know and be able to 
do, as set out in the current National Curriculum Subject Orders, are sufficiently 
demanding and in line with the expectations of the LNF.  This review will cover each 
of the National Curriculum core and other foundation subjects, at each key stage, to 
ensure our expectations of content and skills development are suitably robust.   
 
We will work with and consult stakeholders throughout this review. 
 
The first phase of the review will be completed by September 2013. This will include 
evidence gathering, consultation with key stakeholders and experts, and analysis, all 
of which will culminate in a report.  
 
The second phase of the review will be completed by September 2014. This will 
include identification of any revisions to the current assessment and curriculum 
arrangements in Wales, informed by public consultation. 
 
Implementation is expected to take place from September 2014.  
 
Further details on how the review is to be taken forward and how key stakeholders 
including parents, teachers, and the learner can contribute will follow in due course.  
 

Page 8



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
REPORT TO: STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 

EDUCATION 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 5TH 2013 
 
SUBJECT: THE WASACRE MEETING HELD ON  

NOVEMBER 23RD 2012 AT MERTHYR TYDFIL 
 
PURPOSE: TO INFORM THE SACRE OF THE DISCUSSIONS 

AND DELIBERATIONS OF WASACRE 
 
Summary 
 
The issues were as follows:  
 
1.  Introduction and Welcome 
 
 Members were welcomed to Merthyr Tydfil by Councillor Lisa Mytton, the 
 Mayor of Merthyr Tydfil. A presentation was received by pupils of 
 Twynyrhodyn Community Primary School on their work in RE based on the 
 theme of The Golden Rule. They outlined how it links with SEAL and P4C 
 strategies. They emphasised the importance of RE on the curriculum and its 
 relevance to everyday living. They summed up their work through a Class 
 Charter that outlines the rules for living an behaviour in their school 
 community. Thanks were extended to the headteacher of the school Mark 
 Carrington and their RE coordinator Jayne Wiliams.   
 
 A moment of reflection took place. Rev Canon Edward Evans, Chair of 
 WASACRE asking the members present to reflect on the theme ‘What 
 Inspires People’ by reference to round the world yachtsmen and women. 
 
2.  Matters Arising  
 

• Examination Data: an update was received on the correspondence that has 
taken place with the Welsh Government regarding national examination data 
that is currently received in May. It was proposed a joint letter be sent by 
WASACRE and NAPfRE to ask the WG to release this information earlier 
than May so that SACREs can discuss the outcomes in their Spring term 
meetings. This was agreed by members.   

 

• Collective Worship Guidance: the guidance document on collective worship 
in schools has now been circulated to all SACREs for sending to schools.  

 

• WASACRE Survey on SACREs and their Local Community: members 
were informed that the report has been sent to all SACREs for discussion. 
The case studies to support the document will be on the WASACRE website 
in December.  

 
3.  Presentation Further Education: Chaplaincy and Religious Education      
       
 Two presentations were received: 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 9



• RE in Further Education by Jonathon Martin, Deputy Principal of the College 
in Merthyr. Mr Martin outlined the provision for RE at the tertiary college which 
will include AS and A level students in 2013 and 2014. Students will have the 
opportunity to mix and match both A level and BTEC qualifications. They will 
also be offered the Welsh Baccalaureate Qualification. There are healthy 
numbers at AS/A2 (65/41). The AS modules studied will be Philosophy and 
Ethics. There will be provision for RE through the Welsh Baccalaureate slots 
on the timetable with guest speakers in attendance.  The subject will be 
promoted through close liaison with schools and attendance at Career 
Evenings. There will be opportunities for students to explore a multi faith 
dimension to the curriculum with tutors through their tutorial sessions. The 
college as part of the University of Glamorgan has a Chaplaincy team. There 
is a prayer room at the College and the College will draw on the expertise of 
the multi faith team at the University of Glamorgan. Mr Martin is a member of 
Merthyr SACRE and welcomes SACREs role in the development of RE at 
Merthyr College. .  

 

• Chaplaincy and Pastoral Support in College of FE. This presentation by 
Andrew Morton of Coleg Gwent outlined the pastoral support offered to staff 
and students. He outlined the provision for pastoral support and opportunities 
for those with belief to affirm their beliefs and practice though a designated 
prayer room. There is information and provision of materials on the multi faith 
dimension available on Moodle. Chaplaincy services are offered that is non 
evangelistic. There is a tutorial enrichment programme where topics such as 
Equality, Diversity and Religion, Faith and Spirituality, Loss and Bereavement 
are covered. Members were asked to draw attention to the provision for RE/ 
Chaplaincy in FE colleges. Some SACREs already co-opt tertiary colleges on 
to their committee.   

 
4.  RE Council report  

 

• Attention was drawn to the publication of the REsilience material being 
adapted for FE Colleges. It is called ‘Challenging Voices’ and provides 
guidance in handling contentious issues with students. It is available on the 
REC website: www.religiouseducationcouncil.org. 

 

• Two vacancies exist for WASACRE to be represented on the RE Council. 
Tania ap Sion and Gavin Craigen have expressed an interest to serve 
WASACRE on this committee and their nominations were endorsed by the 
Association. 

 

• A report was received about the All Party Parliamentary Group for RE 
established at Westminster. Tania ap Sion attended on behalf of WASACRE. 
This group was established to support the cause of RE in England. Their 
current enquiry is regarding the supply and support for RE teachers in 
England. All teachers have received a questionnaire to be completed and this 
will be supported by research findings and case studies. It was agreed that 
Wales should keep an eye on events in England and suggested ways in 
which the English enquiry could be supported. Firstly, the research conducted 
by Leslie Francis on religious diversity includes English and Welsh data and 
this could be offered to them. Secondly, subject to England finding this 
helpful- a letter could be sent to the Committee offering information on how 
RE is supported in Wales through the Welsh Government.   

Page 10



• RE Subject review. As part of the English National Curriculum Review the 
REC has been asked to conduct a review of RE to contribute to the Review 
process. Their implementation date is September 2013. Wales will also be 
conducting a Curriculum Review for implementation September 2014. There 
are huge implications for RE and review of agreed syllabuses and it was 
recommended and endorsed that WASACRE Executive discuss this at their 
next meeting in February 2013.   

 
5.  RE in the Higher Education Sector by Lynda Maddock  
 
 Two presentations were received: 
  
 Primary PGCE: This focused upon the revalidation of the course in Summer 
 2012 and the implications were a large reduction of time for all subjects other 
 than the core subjects. This includes a substantial reduction of time for RE 
 specific issues from 12 hrs to 4.5 hours per year. The reasons for this are 
 firstly, that there is an intention to make the training more school based and 
 secondly, because of the emphasis on literacy and numeracy in the 
 curriculum. 
 
 Secondary PGCE: Since September 2010 this course has been delivered at 
 Swansea Metropolitan University rather than Trinity Saint Davids. The cap on 
 numbers is reducing year on year and this year the cap is set at 24. This is 
 driven by the fact that there are less teaching posts available at the end of the 
 course. All places have been filled. An outline of the structure of the course 
 and the assessment processes were given. Students are encouraged to gain 
 some teaching experience prior to entry on the course through such courses 
 as Prepare to Teach run by the Open University.   
 
 
6.  Report from the WASACRE Executive Committee  
  
 The Executive Committee Report was received.  
 
7.  Updates  
  
 Three updates were received: 
 

• Estyn Thematic Review 2012 
 This took place in November and December by Estyn. It came about after 
 WASACRE raised the issue with the Minister for Education, Leighton 
 Andrews. The issue concerned the importance of highlighting the state of 
 provision and standards in RE in Wales so that SACREs have a benchmark 
 to use when looking at school inspection reports and self evaluation.  
 WASACRE was invited to send a delegation to discuss the review with Mark 
 Campion lead inspector for the review. The focus is upon RE at Key Stages 3 
 and 4. The review involves three Estyn inspectors, 20 secondary schools 
 having a one day visit by an inspector and 20 schools completing a 
 questionnaire. The outcomes will be reported to the Minister in March 2013 
 and then to WASACRE and a wider audience in the Summer term.  
 

• Key Stage 3 Moderation 
 Libby Jones gave a presentation on behalf of Gavin Craigen, Chief 
 Moderator. It outlined the KS3 moderation process and outcomes and the 
 main messages found in the Chief Moderators Report 2012. There are 15 

Page 11



 schools that have been reported to DfES as exemplars of good practice. Both 
 the WASACRE Executive and NAPfRE have discussed the way forward for 
 schools now that the moderation process is over. It was agreed that training 
 on the KS3 assessment structure would be offered to all schools though a 
 series of training days offered in the Spring term 2013. These training days 
 would be funded by WASACRE 
 

• REQM (RE Quality Mark) 
 Phil Lord attended this training to become an assessor on behalf of NApfRE/ 
 WASACRE. It was recommended that the course materials be amended to 
 suit a Welsh context and that Phil conduct a trial of the award with a sample 
 of schools in his LAs. Discussion arose about the merits and shortcomings of 
 such an award. It was proposed that a trial take place and a full and 
 transparent feedback be given to the Association at its summer meeting. A 
 vote was taken and the proposal was endorsed by WASACRE members.  
 
8.  Showcase of Resources  
  Mr Ben Wigley informed members that REM Wales had developed a 
 comprehensive list of resources to support acts of collective worship in Welsh 
 medium secondary schools. 
 
 RE Ideas was distributed to local authorities who subscribed to REM Wales.  
 
9.   Any other business 
 Reference was drawn to the announcement by the Education Minister 
 Leighton Andrews of the review into education, and the possibility of local 
 authorities being stripped of their responsibilities for schools. It was agreed 
 that WASACRE would contact the Minister to enquire what the implications of 
 such a change would be to SACREs.  
 
Date of Next Meeting  
   
The next meeting will be held on March 22nd at Newport 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of last Meeting  - 9th October 2012
	5 The review of the Agreed Syllabus for Merthyr Tydfil
	Curriculum review info

	11 WASACRE

